
HC 1/31/24 Page 1 of 1 

City of Depoe Bay 
Harbor Commission 
 Regular Meeting 

January 31, 2024 – Wednesday, 3:30 PM 

Depoe Bay City Hall – 570 SE Shell Avenue 

The Meeting Location is Accessible to the Public 

To Join from Your Computer, Tablet, or Smartphone: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84734376989?pwd=VVRYSXZCbW42Mk51Y0RRbWh4VC82Zz09 
Meeting ID:  847 3437 6989 
Passcode:  915081 

To Join from Your Phone: 
Phone: (253) 215-8782 
Meeting ID:  847 3437 6989 
Passcode:  915081

Public comments may be made via email up to two hours before the meeting start time at info@cityofdepoebay.org 

Please Note:  In the event of Zoom Technical Difficulties the Telephone Conference System will be utilized.  Dial (888) 204-5987, Access code 9599444 

AGENDA 

A. Call Meeting to Order and Establish a Quorum

B. Changes and Additions to the Agenda

C. Correspondence

D. Approval of Minutes:  November 29, 2023

E. Election of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary

F. Public Input

G. Liaison Officer Report

H. Harbormaster and City Recorder Reports

I. Unfinished Business
1) Harbor Dock Leases – Discussion
2) Moorage Fees – Other Government Agencies

J. New Business

K. Commissioner Concerns

L. Adjourn

Depoe Bay City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please call 
City Hall at 541-765-2361 48 Hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance can be provided. 

TTY#1-800-735-2900 

Page 1 of 13

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84734376989?pwd=VVRYSXZCbW42Mk51Y0RRbWh4VC82Zz09
mailto:info@cityofdepoebay.org


HC  11/29/23 Page 1 of 4 

Depoe Bay Harbor Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, November 29, 2023 
3:30 PM 
Depoe Bay City Hall 

PRESENT: Chair J. O’Brien, T. Mick, D. Zimmerman, J. Burright (arrived at 3:45 PM) 
ABSENT: L. Martin
STAFF: City Recorder K. Wollenburg, Deputy City Recorder C. Duering, Harbormaster R.

Hildenbrand, Public Works Director B. Weidner (arrived at 3:37 PM)

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chair O’Brien called the meeting to order and established a quorum at 3:30 PM. 

B. CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

There were no changes or additions. 

C. CORRESPONDENCE

There was none. 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  OCTOBER 25, 2023

Motion: Zimmerman moved to approve the October 25, 2023, minutes.  Mick seconded. 

Vote:  Motion passed. 
Ayes:  O’Brien, Zimmerman, Mick 

E. PUBLIC INPUT

There was none. 

F. LIAISON OFFICER REPORT

Zimmerman summarized the report he provided at the November 21, 2023, City Council 
meeting:  1) We are in winter mode; 2) The parking lot is striped and the docks are debris-free; 
3) Crab season opens a week from Friday so crab pots will be back on the docks; 4) The security
camera system is being expanded; 5) The Harbor office and boat launch signage has been
installed; 6) The next Harbor Commission meeting is November 29th; 7) Christmas decorating is
underway.

G. HARBORMASTER AND CITY RECORDER REPORTS

Hildenbrand summarized his report (copy attached to original of these minutes). He reported 
on 1) The Harbor office, seawall, and launch fee signage; 2) The expansion of the security 

Page 2 of 13



HC  11/29/23 Page 2 of 4 

camera system; 3) Harbor Christmas lights and decorations; 4) Vandalism to the restroom doors 
at the fish cleaning station building; 5) Hinge and cleat replacement project; 6) Upcoming 
meeting with a representative from Oregon Sea Grant to determine the condition of the pump-
out station. 

Discussion followed regarding 1) Vandalism; 2) The proposed security camera locations; 3) 
Increasing the number of cameras; and 4) The location of the pump-out station holding tank.    

The City Recorder reported on the Docks 2-4 Replacement Project 1) The City Council will be 
meeting in Executive Session tonight to discuss the bid protest; 2) City taff has been meeting 
with an attorney firm to discuss options; all three (3) options will cause a delay; 3) The terms of 
the million-dollar grant have changed and the project is to be completed by June 2024; the 
City is applying for an extension to the deadline and is reaching out to Representative Gomberg 
and Senator Anderson for letters of support; 4) The $1.5 million grant agreement has been 
signed. 

Discussion followed regarding 1) The Oregon in-water work regulations; 2) The project 
completion date; and 3) The impact on supplies, fabrication, timeline, and costs due to the 
delay. 

The City Recorder summarized the Harbor Fund financial report she prepared (copy attached 
to original of these minutes).  She noted that the transfers to the General Fund for payroll, 
administration, and materials/supplies expenditures have not been done. 

Discussion followed regarding employee costs assessed to the Harbor Fund.  City staff offered 
to provide the Harbor Commission with the 2023-2024 annual budget supplemental pages for 
materials/services and personnel expenditures. 

H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1) Code of Ordinances Chapter 92. Harbor Regulations Adopted by City Council

Chair O’Brien stated he would like to rephrase the following: 1) (page 9 of 20) Dumping of vessel 
holding tanks in harbor waters is not allowed. Persons shall use the CVA pump/dump station for 
dumping of vessel holding tanks located on the fueling dock (Dock 5) for dumping of vessel 
holding tanks.  

The City Recorder stated that she is not sure if City staff has the authority to correct more than 
Scrivener's errors after the City Council adopts an ordinance. 

A brief discussion followed regarding 1) Storage of crab pots is allowed on docks until October 
15, 2024; 2) Watercraft liability-protection and indemnity insurance and pollution liability 
insurance in an amount not less than $500,000 for the term of the moorage license agreement. 

2) Moorage Fees – Other Government Agencies

Chair O’Brien summarized the October 25, 2023, meeting discussion. 

Page 3 of 13



 

 
HC  11/29/23   Page 3 of 4 
 

Discussion followed regarding 1) Government agencies including the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, U.S. Coast Guard, U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(ODF&W), National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA); 2) Special exception for the 
U.S. Coast Guard; 3) Transient versus annual moorage usage by government agencies; 4) 
Oregon State University and other research vessels. 
 
Motion: Zimmerman moved to make a recommendation to the City Council that the City offer 
a 50% discount on transient and annual moorage fees to government and research vessels.  The 
U.S. Coast Guard shall be exempt from all moorage fees.  Mick seconded. 

 
Vote:  Motion passed. 
Ayes:  O’Brien, Zimmerman, Mick, Burright 

 
Discussion followed regarding 1) ODF&W’s moorage space; 2) The Harbor regulations require 
an owner/operator using the harbor facilities for moorage by any vessel to pay the moorage 
fee; 3) Any changes to this regulation would require the adoption of an amending ordinance. 
 

3) Harbor Dock Leases – Discussion 
 
The Commission agreed to postpone the discussion to the next meeting. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1) December Meeting – December 27, 2023 
 
Motion: Zimmerman moved to go dark in December.  Mick seconded. 

 
Vote:  Motion passed. 
Ayes:  O’Brien, Zimmerman, Mick, Burright 

 
O’Brien announced that the next meeting will be January 31, 2024. 
 
J. COMMISSIONER CONCERNS 
 
Burright:  None. 
 
Zimmerman:  I am concerned about the Harbor Docks 2-4 Replacement Project.   How did we 
get to this point? 
 
The City Recorder responded there was an issue with Addendum No. 3. 
 
Mick:  The short deadlines are a concern.  The deadline is for the disbursement of funds, not 
project completion, right? 
 
The City Recorder reiterated that the City is requesting an extension and she is confident that 
the extension will be granted. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the project timeline and material costs. 

Page 4 of 13



 

 
HC  11/29/23   Page 4 of 4 
 

 
O’Brien:  No concerns.  
 
K. ADJOURN 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:20 PM. 
 
 
 
              
       Chair Jack O’Brien 
 
 
      
Carla Duering 
Deputy City Recorder 

Page 5 of 13



 City of Depoe Bay VenTek 

RCS

Payment Settlement Report

Time:Date:

Items Total $Account Date & Time Batch ID

November 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023 ALL

SELECTED BY SETTLEMENT TIME

Amex Visa MC Discover

8 Jan 2024   2:30:57PM

Location: Lot     Terminal: 3021999 (3021999)

11/15/2023  11:50:45PM  10.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  1  0.00  10.00  0.00  0.00

 2121  10.001277Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

11/16/2023  11:50:53PM  20.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  2  0.00  20.00  0.00  0.00

 2123  10.006242Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2122  10.000422Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

11/17/2023  11:50:18PM  140.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  14  0.00  110.00  30.00  0.00

 2138  10.006997Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2136  10.002911Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2135  10.005117Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2127  10.005808MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2134  10.008402Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2132  10.003856Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2128  10.004376MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2139  10.002054Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2131  10.005909MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2125  10.002032Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2137  10.009310Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2133  10.000422Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2130  10.009356Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2124  10.000894Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

11/18/2023  11:50:04PM  50.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  5  0.00  40.00  10.00  0.00

 2144  10.003341Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2142  10.009188Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2140  10.004496MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

Page 1 of 2VenTek Revenue Collection System Page 6 of 13



Payment Settlement Report

Time:Date:

Items Total $Account Date & Time Batch ID

November 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023 ALL

SELECTED BY SETTLEMENT TIME

Amex Visa MC Discover

8 Jan 2024   2:30:57PM

 2141  10.002443Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2143  10.005778Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

11/28/2023  11:50:05PM  20.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  2  0.00  20.00  0.00  0.00

 2146  10.007294Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2145  10.009356Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

11/29/2023  11:50:02PM  90.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  9  0.00  80.00  10.00  0.00

 2147  10.001707Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2151  10.006397Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2149  10.004376MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2148  10.002054Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2152  10.002568Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2155  10.006242Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2150  10.009466Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2154  10.002095Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2153  10.001277Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 33  330.00 Lot      Terminal: 3021999 (3021999)  0.00  280.00  50.00  0.00

 330.00 33Total for Location: Lot  0.00  280.00  50.00  0.00

Grand Total  33  330.00 0.00  280.00  50.00  0.00

Page 2 of 2VenTek Revenue Collection System Page 7 of 13



 City of Depoe Bay VenTek 

RCS

Payment Settlement Report

Time:Date:

Items Total $Account Date & Time Batch ID

December 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 ALL

SELECTED BY SETTLEMENT TIME

Amex Visa MC Discover

8 Jan 2024   2:31:19PM

Location: Lot     Terminal: 3021999 (3021999)

12/11/2023  11:50:43PM  10.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  1  0.00  10.00  0.00  0.00

 2156  10.005768Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

12/12/2023  11:50:31PM  150.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  15  0.00  130.00  20.00  0.00

 2157  10.007294Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2166  10.004462Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2167  10.002689Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2171  10.006997Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2170  10.002054Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2159  10.003341Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2165  10.005614Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2163  10.004376MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2162  10.000257Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2161  10.009138MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2164  10.005895Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2168  10.006262Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2169  10.005768Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2160  10.009356Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2158  10.003419Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

12/13/2023  11:50:27PM  120.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  12  0.00  110.00  10.00  0.00

 2173  10.001707Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2177  10.004376MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2182  10.008496Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2183  10.007749Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2179  10.001690Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2178  10.004104Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2176  10.005614Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

Page 1 of 2VenTek Revenue Collection System Page 8 of 13



Payment Settlement Report

Time:Date:

Items Total $Account Date & Time Batch ID

December 01, 2023 to December 31, 2023 ALL

SELECTED BY SETTLEMENT TIME

Amex Visa MC Discover

8 Jan 2024   2:31:19PM

 2172  10.007294Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2175  10.002948Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2174  10.007559Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2181  10.001277Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2180  10.001947Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

12/15/2023  11:50:57PM  10.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  1  0.00  0.00  10.00  0.00

 2184  10.004496MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

12/16/2023  11:50:49PM  50.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  5  0.00  40.00  10.00  0.00

 2185  10.003967Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2188  10.004584Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2189  10.000541Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2187  10.006452Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2186  10.004496MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

12/20/2023  11:50:23PM  10.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  1  0.00  10.00  0.00  0.00

 2190  10.006262Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

12/21/2023  11:50:18PM  40.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  4  0.00  30.00  10.00  0.00

 2192  10.001277Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2194  10.003410Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2191  10.004496MC  0.00  10.00  0.00 0.00

 2193  10.005768Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

12/31/2023  11:50:25PM  20.00000075334599.001 AutoSettled  2  0.00  20.00  0.00  0.00

 2195  10.006526Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 2196  10.007645Visa  10.00  0.00  0.00 0.00

 41  410.00 Lot      Terminal: 3021999 (3021999)  0.00  350.00  60.00  0.00

 410.00 41Total for Location: Lot  0.00  350.00  60.00  0.00

Grand Total  41  410.00 0.00  350.00  60.00  0.00

Page 2 of 2VenTek Revenue Collection System Page 9 of 13



Piling Leasing 

• Measure the footprint of the dock to determine how much city property is being covered.

• Measure the space next to the docks of the width and length of the boats to determine how

much city property is being covered.

• For the cost of the lease, things that could be taken into consideration.

o The cost of repairs, replacement and general maintenance of the docks over the life of.

o The cost of repairs, replacement and general maintenance of the pilings over the life of.

• The city could supply docks and assume responsibility for their upkeep so the city and lease

holder do not share responsibility should something happen. (no confusion as to who is at fault

should something fail)

• Or the lease holder assumes full responsibility for maintaining pilings and dock, with the city

doing annual inspections on the condition.

Port of Toledo: Leases out warehouse, docks and pilings. The upkeep of property, building, pilings, 

docks are the responsibility of the leaseholder. 

Garibaldi: Does not lease any property on the water 

Port of Newport: Does not have but if they did, the above is how they would determine a price. 

Provided by the Harbormaster    

Page 10 of 13



3240 EASTLAKE AVE. E • SEATTLE, WA 98102 • P: 206.624.1387 • W: WWW.PNDENGINEERS.CM 

Kimberly Wollenburg, City Recorder 
City of Depoe Bay 
P.O. Box 8 
Depoe Bay, OR 97341 
Recorder@CityofDepoebay.org  

SUBJECT:  Depoe Bay Harbor Docks 2‐4 Replacement – ReBid Evaluation and Award Recommendation 

Dear Kim, 

The City of Depoe Bay received three responses to their invitation to rebid the Depoe Bay Harbor Docks 
2‐4 Replacement project on Tuesday, January 9, 2024. The City opened each bid package and recorded 
the contents,  including comparison with the bidder’s checklist, as well as recording the cost proposals 
contained. The basis of bid was set up with a base bid tally, and an additive alternate option. All of this 
information was shared with PND Engineers, Inc. for review and evaluation. The following is our evaluation 
and recommendation based on this information. 

The evaluation of bids consisted of all components of the bid form, including both base only and base bid 
with additive alternate. The lowest base bid total was submitted by Advanced American Construction at 
$4,133,625.00. This base bid number  includes the value of 185 linear foot of pile socket drilling and 13 
submerged pile cutoff. These quantities were estimated for bidding purposes. Actual quantities will be 
determined based on  field  conditions  encountered during  construction,  and paid per  field measured 
quantities at the rates provided on the bid form.  

The additive alternate total is an entirely elective project betterment; if the City chooses to add this work 
to  the  contractor’s  scope.  The  lowest  additive  alternate  total was  submitted  by Advanced American 
Construction at $170,000.00. 

After review of the full bid package contents, no discrepancies or irregularities were found in the apparent 
low bidder’s proposal. We recommend initiating steps for bid award to Advanced American Construction 
for the Depoe Bay Harbor Docks 2‐4 Replacement project. 

Feel free to reach out to us should you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

PND Engineers, Inc. | Seattle Office 

John Olson, P.E.  Rian Johnson, P.E., S.E. 
Project Manager  Principal‐in‐Charge 

January 9, 2024 

Page 11 of 13



City of Depoe Bay

Depoe Bay Harbor Docks 2‐4 Replacement
REBID Bid Opening Results

Jan. 9, 2024

Bid Item Item Description

Basis of 

Measure

Approx. 

Quantity

Advanced American 

Construction Legacy Contracting

Bergerson 

Construction

1 Mobilization and Demobilization LS 1 300,000.00$                 439,800.00$                 342,500.00$                

2 Demolition LS 1 250,000.00$                 196,000.00$                 175,000.00$                

3 Furnish and Install Floating Docks LS 1 2,469,000.00$              2,475,000.00$              2,592,000.00$             

4 Furnish and Install 16” Float Piles EA 33 297,000.00$                 341,055.00$                 379,500.00$                

5 Install Salvaged 12.75” Float Piles EA 6 9,000.00$                     19,800.00$                   17,250.00$                  

6 Furnish and Install Bearing Piles EA 4 36,000.00$                   37,300.00$                   39,120.00$                  

7 Furnish and Install Pier LS 1 45,000.00$                   65,114.00$                   69,500.00$                  

8 Furnish and Install ADA Gangway LS 1 85,000.00$                   79,235.00$                   92,500.00$                  

9 Furnish and Install Dock Water System LS 1 85,000.00$                   143,000.00$                 56,500.00$                  

10

Furnish and Install Dock Electrical and Lighting 

System
LS 1

460,000.00$                 443,235.00$                 442,000.00$                

11

Fire Extinguishers, Life Rings and Dock Safety 

Ladders
LS 1

25,000.00$                   36,879.00$                   52,150.00$                  

12 16" Pile Drilling LF 130 48,750.00$                   64,350.00$                   119,600.00$                

13 12.75" Vertical Pile Drilling LF 40 15,000.00$                   19,000.00$                   71,320.00$                  

14 12.75" Batter Pile Drilling LF 15 5,625.00$                     7,575.00$                     32,850.00$                  

15 Pile Removal Below Mudline (Diver) EA 13 3,250.00$                     15,600.00$                   10,920.00$                  

BASE BID TOTAL 4,133,625.00$             4,382,943.00$             4,492,710.00$            

OWNER ELECTIVE ADDITIVE EXTRA

AA1 Furnish and Install Coal Tar Epoxy Overcoat LS 1 170,000.00$                 179,027.20$                 192,250.00$                

BASE BID + ADD ALTERNATE 4,303,625.00$             4,561,970.20$             4,684,960.00$            

Total Amounts (Unit Price x Approx. Quantity)

Page 12 of 13



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD 

 
DATE ISSUED:   January 11, 2024 
PROJECT NAME:   Depoe Bay Harbor Docks 2-4 Replacement  
INTENT TO AWARD TO:  Advanced American Construction 
AMOUNT:   $4,303,625.00 (includes additive extra) 
 
 
Thank you for participating and submitting an offer on the above solicitation. We appreciate 
your interest in doing business with the City of Depoe Bay.  
 
The City has completed the evaluation process of the bids received. An award is 
recommended for this solicitation to the following: 
 
Advanced American Construction 
 
The above vendor was determined to be the lowest, responsible, and responsive bidder 
whose bid meets the requirements and evaluation criteria set forth in the Invitation to Bid.  
 
Any vendor who bid on the project who wishes to protest this Notice of Intent must file the 
protest, in writing, within (7) business days from the issuance of this notice to the Contracting 
Authority noted below. 
 
 
 
 
Kimberly Wollenburg 
City Recorder 
City of Depoe Bay 
recorder@cityofdepoebay.org  
 

Page 13 of 13


	City of Depoe Bay
	Harbor Commission
	Regular Meeting
	January 31, 2024 – Wednesday, 3:30 PM
	Depoe Bay City Hall – 570 SE Shell Avenue



